


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 1a 



 

Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission, July 11, 2022  Page 1 of 2
  
 

MIDDLETON CITY PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION MINUTES 

JULY 11, 2022 
 
Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call & Call to Order: The July 11, 2022, Planning and Zoning 
Commission Meeting was called to order by Vice Chairman Summers at 5:33 p.m. 
Commissioners Crofts, Christiansen and Tremble were present. Chairman Waltemate was 
absent. Planning & Zoning Official, Roberta Stewart and Planning Deputy Clerk, Jennica 
Reynolds were also present.  
 
Action Items: 
 

1. Introduction of New Commissioner: Allen Tremble 
Commissioner Tremble gave a brief introduction of himself. 
 

2. Consent Agenda (items of routine administrative business) 
a.   Consider approving June 13, 2022, regular meeting minutes. 
b.   Consider approving the written Findings of Facts, Conclusions of Law and 

Recommendation for approval for City’s application to amend Middleton City 
Code. 

 
Motion: Motion by Commissioner Crofts to approve the consent agenda items 2a-b. Motion 
seconded by Commissioner Christensen and passed unanimously by Crofts and Summers. 
Tremble abstained. 

 
3. Public Hearing: (Request to be tabled) An application by Briggs Miller and Kyle 

Miller for preliminary plat, with respect to the Heights Landing Subdivision located 
at 23443 Cemetery Road (Tax Parcel Nos. R17904010 and R17904000). The 
proposed preliminary plat consists of 12 residential lots and 1 common lot on 4.1 
acres of land currently in city limits and zoned R-3. – Roberta Stewart 
 

Motion: Motion by Commissioner Christensen to table item 3 to August 8, 2022. Motion 
seconded by Commissioner Tremble and approved unanimously.  

 
4. Public Hearing: (Request to be tabled) An application by Wade Thomas, IAG, LLC 

and Bob Unger, Unger Enterprises, LLC for preliminary plat, with respect to the 
Hidden Mill Subdivision (Tax Parcel No. 33891010). The proposed preliminary plat 
consists of 20 residential lots and 4 common lots on approximately 6.665 acres of 
land currently in city limits and zoned R-3. – Roberta Stewart 
 

Motion: Motion by Commissioner Crofts to table item 4 to August 8, 2022. Motion seconded 
by Commissioner Christensen and approved unanimously.  

       
Public Comments, Commission and Staff Comments 
 
Mike Graefe – We are down 2 police officers, this should be a consideration on approvals. 
Welcome to Commissioner Tremble. N. Middleton road, the paving for 70 yards north of 
Meadow Park Blvd is a mess. 
 
Vice Chairman Summers: CHD4 did the paving. It is not a City project.  
 



 

Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission, July 11, 2022  Page 2 of 2
  
 

Adjourn: Vice Chairman Summers adjourned the meeting at 5:50 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
  
 

  
        
              
        Heidal Summers, Vice Chairman  
 
 
 
                                                               
ATTEST: Jennica Reynolds  

    Deputy Clerk, Planning  
 
Approved: August 8, 2022  
 

 

 

 

 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 2 



 
 
 

1 
 

             STAFF REVIEW AND REPORT 
       Middleton Planning and Zoning Commission 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Brien Riff Special Use Permit Application 
(0 E. 2nd Street – Tax Parcel No. R186120) 

 
Snapshot Summary 

 

 
 
        
 

        

Proposed Residential  
             Duplex 

Location: vacant lot 
near intersection of 
Hawthorne & 2nd St. 



             
        

2 
 

A. Planning & Zoning Commission Hearing Date: August 8, 2022   

B. Project Description & Application Request: Application by Brien Riff for special use 
permit to build residential duplex at 0 E. 2nd Street (Tax Parcel No. R186120).   

C. Current Zoning & Property Condition:  The property is within city limits and zoned 
Multi-Family (M-F).  The parcel is bordered on the north by property zoned R-4. It is 
surrounded on the other three sides with M-F zoning. 
 

                         
 
                   

D. City Services:  City water and sewer are accessible to the project. Both are adjacent 
to the site.     
 

          
 
There may be an issue regarding whether the 2” water line in 2nd Street can 
adequately handle a 7th connection that would be required for this new duplex.  
Therefore, Staff recommends that as a condition of approval Owner shall ensure that 
the tap into the existing line is water-tight by making any repairs to the 2” line for 
defects that are exposed during excavation.  



             
        

3 
 

Additional conditions should be (1) Owner will acknowledge that water flow quantity 
may be compromised to some degree during peak use hours, (2) until water line is 
brought up to current standards, Owner will be limited to a single ¾” residential water 
service to serve only the domestic needs of the duplex unit, (3) Owner cannot use City 
water for landscape irrigation or fire suppression.  
           
 

E. Special Use Permit: - A Duplex (or “single family dwelling, attached”) is an allowed 
use in the M-F zone with a special use permit. 
 

 
                 
 
The P&Z Commission makes the final decision on whether to deny or approve an 
application for special use permit (MCC 1-15-7).  The application does not proceed to 
City Council. 
 
Before the Commission can approve a special use permit application, it must make the 
following four findings: (1) the proposed use is not unreasonable or incompatible with 
other uses in the area, (2) the use is designated in the City’s Use Table MCC 5-4-1, 
Table 1 as a “special use”, (3) City services can be adequately extended to support 
the proposed use, and (4) the use is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan (MCC 
1-15-7). 
 
Under MCC 1-15-7(C), the Commission may also mandate conditions of approval to 
mitigate any adverse impacts proposed by the special use.   
 
Staff Findings: 
 
As to finding No. 2, Planning Staff finds that the duplex is a use designated under M-F 
in the “Use Table” (MCC 5-4-1, Table 1), so there is no issue there. 
 
As to finding No. 3, Planning Staff finds that city services, such as sewer and water, 
can be adequately extended to the site as already shown above. 



             
        

4 
 

 
As to finding 4, Planning Staff finds that the duplex is not in conflict with the 
Comprehensive Plan.  The duplex is a “residential use, and the Comprehensive Plan, 
Future Land Use Map shows “mixed use”, which includes all residential use types. 
 

             
 
 
Finding No 1, may take a little more thought.  The Commission must determine if the 
duplex proposed is “not unreasonable or incompatible” with the surrounding 
neighborhood. In other words, will it fit in or be discordant. 
 
A rendering of the proposed duplex is below.  
 

 



             
        

5 
 

 
This is a generic rendering of the duplex product. The previous rendering, however, is 
a more accurate representation of what is actually proposed for the site. 
 

 
 
 
Below are pictures of the lots and buildings surrounding this proposed duplex lot. 
 

  



             
        

6 
 

  
 

              



             
        

7 
 

          
 

 
 



             
        

8 
 

 
F. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  None 

 
G. Comments from Agencies:  None 

 
H. Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff:   None. 

 
I. Applicant Information:  Applicant is Brien Riff, 2976 E. State Street #120, Box 23, 

Eagle Idaho 83616. 208.573.5779 / Riffbrien@gmail.com 
 
J. Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:    Dates: 

      

Newspaper Notification     7/24/2022 
 

 Radius notification mailed to 
 Adjacent landowners within 500’    7/21/2022 
   
 Circulation to Agencies     7/21/2022  
 
 Sign Posting property     7/22/2022   

 
Neighborhood Meeting     8/1/2022 
 
 

K. Pertinent Codes and Standards: 
  
Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho 
Standards for Public Works Construction, Middleton City Code 1-3, 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-
and Idaho Code Title 67, Chapter 65. 
 

L. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval: 
 
Per State law and the Middleton City Code, any final order must be based upon 
findings of facts and conclusions of law.   
 
As to Findings of Facts, Planning Staff has set forth findings of facts above in 
parentheses, except Staff did not set forth any opinion or statement on whether the 
proposed duplex is “compatible with” and “reasonable for” the surrounding 
neighborhood.  
 
As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that the Planning & Zoning 
Commission has the authority to hear the application and to approve or deny the 
special use permit with or without conditions.  Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all 
public notice requirements were met. Planning Staff further set forth the portions of the 



             
        

9 
 

Idaho State Code and Middleton City Code to be considered in making an order or 
recommendation on the applications.    
 
Order: If the Commission is inclined to approve the Special Use Permit Application, 
Staff recommends the following conditions of approval 
 

1. Applicant must comply with all dimensional standards and setbacks in the 
Middleton City Code for the M-F zone. 

2. Owner shall ensure that the connection into the existing water line is water-
tight by making any repairs to the 2” line for defects that are exposed during 
excavation. 

3. Owner acknowledges that water flow quantity may be compromised to some 
degree during peak use hours. 

4. Until water line is brought up to current standards, Owner will be limited to a 
single ¾” residential water service to serve only the domestic needs of the 
duplex unit. 

5. Owner cannot use City water for landscape irrigation or fire suppression.  
 

 

Prepared by Roberta Stewart         Dated: 8/4/2022 
Planning & Zoning Director 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 3 



 

1 
 

             STAFF REVIEW AND REPORT 
       Middleton Planning and Zoning Commission 

 
 

 

 

 

Hidden Mill Subdivision  
Snapshot Summary 

 

   
  

A. Planning & Zoning Commission Hearing Date: August 8, 2022  

B. Project Description: Residential subdivision with 20 single family buildable lots and 4 
common lots on 6.65 acres of vacant land located at the end of Cobblestone Ct., on 
the north side of Bridgewater Creek Subdivision. (Tax Parcels No. R33891010) 

C. Application Requests: Applicant has one application for Preliminary Plat. 

D. Applicant Information:  Application was received and accepted on November 15, 
2021 

Applicant/Owner:  Wade Thomas, IAG, LLC 
        800 W. Main St., Suite 1460 
        Boise, Idaho 83702 
          
Representative:  Bob Unger, Unger Enterprises, LLC 

         9662 W. Arnold Rd. 
    Boise, Idaho 83714 
                
E. Current Zoning & Property Condition:  The property is an infill lot and is located in 

Middleton City zoned R-3 (Single-Family Residential). It is adjacent to a residential 
subdivision (Bridgewater Creek) on the south that is zoned R-3 and the subdivision 
(Mountain View) on the north is zoned R-4. Mill Creek Elementary is located just to the 
east and north. 

N
. 
M

id
d

le
to

n
 R

d
 

Cornell St 

 

D
e
w

e
y
 A

v
e
 



             
        

2 
 

        
 

F. City Services: City water and sewer are located immediately south in the Bridgewater 

Creek Subdivision.  

              
  

   

   

Water  Sewer 



             
        

3 
 

G.  Traffic, Access & Streets: The subdivision is surrounded by the Mill Slough ditch 
along the north and west sides of the property. Road access will be through the 
Bridgewater Creek Subdivision to the south with Cobblestone Ct as the access point.  

 
H. Pathway, Sidewalks & Open Space: There is an extensive pathway planned that will 

run along the Mill Slough to the north and west of the project. The public pathway will 
be a 10 ft wide asphalt paved path with a public access easement. This pathway will 
also connect to the existing pathway east of the project and north of McKinley 
Meadows. This pathway is identified in the Comprehensive Plan as a means of 
connecting to sidewalks/pathways along Middleton Road and the existing pathway to 
the south along SH44 and S. Middleton Rd. In all, the development will provide 13% 
open space with various amenities of covered areas, playground, picnic tables and 
benches located on the common lots.  
 

I. Middleton Rural Fire District: Fire Chief Deputy Islas of Middleton Rural Fire District 
requires that each residence have a fire suppression sprinkler system installed in the 
home to bring it up fire code. This is because there is no additional access to the 
subdivision except Cobblestone Ct. The developer has agreed to this condition.  
 

J. Storm Drain and Pressurized Irrigation: Storm drain facilities and pressurized 
irrigation have been provided and are approved by the City Engineer. 
 

K. Floodplain: Middleton City Code 5-4-13-2 outlines the requirements for developing in 
the floodplain. The developer has submitted a Floodplain Development Permit 
Application and will bring the site up to code per FEMA and Middleton City Code. In 
addition, prior to each building permit issued the builder will be required to submit a 
flood plain permit application and a pre-construction elevation certificate.  A post 
construction elevation certificate will also be submitted and approved prior to 
Certificate of Occupancy. Both the pre-construction and post construction elevation 
certificates will be reviewed and approved by the City Floodplain Administrator.  
 

L. Preliminary Plat Application: The project will be brought to completion in one phase. 
(Exhibit “A” Preliminary Plat and Landscape Plan)  
 
Preliminary Plat: 

 



             
        

4 
 

 
 
Landscape Plan: 

 
 
FINDINGS: 
 
Planning Staff finds that the preliminary plat complies with all dimensional standards 
and codes of the City of Middleton, and as will be shown in more detail below is in 
harmony with the Comprehensive Plan.       
      

K. Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map: Applicant’s project complies with the 
Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map. The intended use is Residential which is an 
allowable use in the Mixed-Use area (green) shown on the Land Use Map.  

 

                                  
 
Additionally, Applicant’s project complies with the Goals, Objectives, and Strategies of 
the 2019 Middleton Comprehensive Plan as follows: 

a. Goal 2: Preserve and protect private property rights as required by Idaho law. 
b. Goals 3: The project provides safe transportation services by creating on-site 

sidewalks and pathways as extensions or connections to public pathways or 
sidewalks.  



             
        

5 
 

c. Goal 11: The project will allow dwelling types that match residents’ lifestyles by 
promoting in-fill housing improvements.  

 
L. Comments from City Engineer and City Staff: Exhibit “B” Copies of City Engineer 

comments dated 4/4/2022, 5/31/2022 and recommendation letter dated 8/2/2022. 
Staff Comments dated 4/5/2022 
 

M. Comments from Agencies: Exhibit “C” 
MRFD dated 4/8/2022:  
 

N. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners: Exhibit “D” 
Brent Schwab dated 6/4/2022 
Sam Sommer dated 6/7/2022 
 

O. Notices:        Dates: 
 
Neighborhood Meeting      11/1/2021     

Newspaper Notification      5/29/2022  
 Radius notification mailed to Landowners within 500’  5/27/2022  
 Circulation to Agencies      5/27/2022  
 Sign Posting property      5/27/2022  

 
Planning staff finds that notice was appropriate and given according to law. The 
hearing was tabled from June 13, 2022 to August 8, 2022 due to the Moratorium that 
was in place June 2, 2022 to July 20, 2022. 
 

P. Applicable Codes and Standards:  
Idaho Code Secs., 67-6503, 67-6509, 67-6511, 67-6513, 50-1301 through 50-1329. 
Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the 
Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction. 
Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-3, and 5-4. 

 
Q. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval: 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission is tasked with considering the application for 
Preliminary Plat and then making a recommendation to City Council for approval or 
denial of the application. 
 
According to Idaho State Law and the Middleton City Code, any recommendation must 
be based upon Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law.  

 
Findings of Facts: 
 
Planning Staff has set forth the Findings of Facts above. If the Commission agrees 
with the testimony, evidence and Findings of Facts presented at the public hearing, the 
Commission may pass a motion to accept those Findings of Facts.  



             
        

6 
 

 
Conclusions of Law: 
 
Planning Staff finds that the Planning & Zoning Commission has the authority to hear 
this application and to recommend approval or denial of this application. Planning Staff 
also notes all public notice requirements were met and set forth the portions of the 
Idaho State Code and Middleton City Code to be considered in making a 
recommendation on the application. If the public hearing is held and conducted in 
compliance with Idaho State Code and the Middleton City Code, then the Commission 
may pass a motion to accept the Conclusions of Law set forth in the Staff Report and 
public hearing.  
 
If the Commission is inclined to recommend approval of the Preliminary Plat 
application based upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, then 
Planning Staff recommends that any approval be subject to the following conditions: 

1. City of Middleton municipal domestic water, fire flow and sanitary sewer 
services are to be extended to serve the subdivision. 

2. All City Engineer review comments are to be completed and approved.  
3. All City planner comments to be completed and approved. 
4. All City approved comments from MRFD to be completed and approved. 
5. All Floodplain Administrator comments are to be completed and approved. 
6. Pathway along the slough is to be 10 ft wide with a public access easement. 
7. Sewer and water capacity to be reserved at the time the City approves the 

construction drawings for the project.  
 

Lastly, if the Commission denies the application, Middleton City Code 1-14(E)(8) 
requires that the Commission “identify what the Applicant can modify in the 
application” to gain approval. 

 Prepared by: Jennica Reynolds - Deputy Clerk, Planning Dated: 8/4/2022 



1 
 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

Preliminary Plat & Landscape Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



N89°44'52" 446.83'

N
1°

47
'2

9"
E 

42
2.

67
'

MW

MW

MW

SS
SS

SS

SS

T T
T T

IV

WVWV

6    5
7    8

CP&F NO.
2021-078748

6    E 1/16

7
CP&F NO.

2004-22693

MW

SS

IV

T

WV

07/18/2022

07/18/2022



N
8°37'44"W

 195.25'

9 10 11 12 13 14 15
1

2

3

7 66 57

8

T
T

IV

WVWV

T

MW

MW

MW

1

13

12

11
10

9 8 7

5

6

T

SS

N
0°23'36"W

 296.05'

N42
°4

0'
44

"E
 82

.66
'

S89°24'42"E 75.83' S22°14'29"W
25.05'

S71°16'52"E 490.24'

S89°48'07"E 225.66'

N
20

°1
4'

00
"E

 7
8.

09
'

N
6°20'29"W

 95.09'

S1
°4

7'
29

"W
 2

68
.6

9'

N89°44'52"W 828.30'

N69°29'41"E

49.09'

1

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE
RIM=2399.85'

 12" RCP INV=2394.48'
8" RCP INV(E)=2394.86'

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE
RIM=2401.46'
8" RCP INV(W)=2397.29'
8" RCP INV(N)=2397.39'
8" RCP INV(S)=2397.43'

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE
RIM=2401.49'

8" RCP INV(S)=2397.79'

S89°45'46"E
21.12'

±291,529 S.F.
±6.69 ACRES

S89°48'07"E
50.26'

S70°21'37"W 340.03'

S0
°3

6'
24

"W
 1

26
.4

0'

N
1°

47
'2

9"
E 

42
2.

67
'

2

CO
BB

LE
ST

O
N

E 
CT

.

℄ MILL SLOUGH

BRID
GEW

A
TER W

A
Y

1

SS

SS

N
8°35'53"W

 58.02'

FLOODWAY

AE ZONE

SS

S89°44'13"E 376.38'

S1
°3

9'
45

"W
 6

15
.4

0'

617.03' 92.11'26.00'26.00'67.16'

10.71'

S89°44'13"E 107.50'

N
24°08'48"W

 400.81'

MW

MW

MW

SS
SS

SS

SS

T T
T T

IV

WVWV

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE
RIM=2398.03'

12" RCP INV(W)=2395.00'
12" RCP INV(S)=2394.97'

PROJECT BENCHMARK
FOUND 5/8" IRON PIN
NAVD88 ELEV.=2401.67'

N61°30'41"W
17.72'

S89°44'26"E
6.73'

S7°20'33"E 106.33'

S89°45'46"E 318.13' S89°45'46"E 243.56'
CREEKSIDE CT. BRIDGEWATER WAY

S0
°3

6'
24

"W
 1

43
.9

5'

N85°50'03"W 154.83'

REAL POINT OF BEGINNING

℄
 M

ILL SLO
U

GH

9

2220 21

24

2319

18

7

13
11

14

1

8

2

16

3

17

4

5

6

10

12

15

122.98' 402.20' 347.76'
6    E 1/16

7
CP&F NO.

2004-22693

N89°44'52" 446.83' 6    5
7    8

CP&F NO.
2021-078748

07/18/2022



N89°44'52"W 828.30'

±291,529 S.F.
±6.69 ACRES

MW

MW

MW

SS

SS

T T
T T

IV

WVWV

PATHWAY

PATHWAY

PATHWAY

FLOODWAY - NO WORK
ONLY REVEG AS NEEDED

LAWN

LAWN

FENCING, TYP
4' OPEN VISION WHERE SF LOTS MEET COMMON LOTS & PATHWAY
6' CLOSED VISION WHERE SF LOTS ADJACENT TO OTHER SF LOTS

TREES BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME CONT CAL QTY REMARKS

Betula nigra `BNMTF` TM / Dura Heat River Birch B&B 2" 5 35`h x 30`w

Tilia cordata `Greenspire` / Greenspire Littleleaf Linden B & B 2" 3 35`H x 25`W,
Class II

PLANT SCHEDULE

0

SCALE: 

feet30 60 90

1" = 30'NORTH

JOB NO:
DATE:
DRAWN BY:
CHECKED BY:

#

DRAWING TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

JB
JB

07.21.2022
22-2383

D e s c r i p t i o nDATEMRK

REVISIONS

H
ID

D
EN

 M
IL

L 
SU

BD
IV

IS
IO

N

M
ID

D
LE

TO
N

, I
D

AH
O

1
A

B
C

D
E

F
G

H
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

ST
AC

K 
R

O
C

K 
G

R
O

U
P 

- C
IT

Y 
R

EV
IE

W
 S

ET

WILLET C HOWARD, PLA
OFFICE: (208) 345.0500 EMAIL:

WILL@STACKROCKGROUP.COM
www.STACKROCKGROUP.COM

THE GRAPHICS AND DESIGNS
O N  T H I S  S H E E T  A R E
DELIVERABLES THAT REMAIN
AT ALL TIMES PROPERTY OF
STACK ROCK GROUP, INC.

REPRODUCTION OR REUSE OF
THIS PRODUCT CONTAINED
H E R E  I N  I S  P R O H I B I T E D
W I T H O U T  T H E  W R I T T E N
CONSENT OF STACK ROCK
G R O U P ,  I N C .

©2022 STACK
ROCK GROUP, INC.

LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECTURE

& MASTER PLANNING

(208) 345-0500
404 S 8th St. #154
Boise, ID 83702

StackRockGroup.com

PRELIMINARY

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

07.21.22

L100

LANDSCAPE
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUNTAIN VIEW HOA R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAHN R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEARSON R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEK R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPARKS FM TR R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERIC R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEROUX R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SORENSEN R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TENTCO NO 2 LLC R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEICHERT R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOOTE R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGEWATER CREEK HOA R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOMMER R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUNTAIN VIEW HOA R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 BENCHES AND 1 PET  WASTE STATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seals

AutoCAD SHX Text
**

AutoCAD SHX Text
**

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16733

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T



1. REGULATIONS & STANDARDS
1.1. All contractor work shall be conducted in accordance with

ISPWC (Idaho Standard Public Works Construction), 2022 (or
most recent published); and City of Middleton, ID codes,
standards and state and local regulations.

2. EXISTING CONDITIONS
2.1. All utilities shall be located prior to construction and protected.

Any damage to structures, utilities or concrete will be replaced
at contractor's expense.

2.2. The site has many existing improvements such as underground
utilities, curb and gutter, light poles and sidewalks.

2.3. See Engineer's plans for information about existing features.
2.3.1. Refer to civil plans for all existing and/or proposed drainage

pipes & locations, utilities.  Protect all drainage at all times,
protect all utilities at all times.

3. GRADING & SITE PREPARATION
3.1. Prepare finish grades for planting by grubbing and removing

weeds. If necessary apply Round-Up (or equivalent herbicide),
using a certified applicator. Remove rocks and other materials
over 2".

3.2. All gravel overprep to be removed and disposed of off site.
3.3. Finish grade to be smooth transition to allow for entire site to be

a natural flowing space.
3.4. Fine grade lawn areas to elevations set by Engineer's plans

with positive drainage away from structures.
3.5. Refer to Engineer's plans for grading information & for all

drainage pipes and locations.  Protect and retain drainage at all
times.

3.6. No pooling or standing water will be accepted per industry
standards.

4. SOILS
4.1. Lawn areas shall receive 12" min depth of screened topsoil.
4.2. All planter beds shall receive 18" min depth of screened topsoil.
4.3. Reuse of existing topsoil that has been stockpiled on site is

permitted if:
4.3.1. Topsoil is tested and analyzed to ensure a proper growing

medium. Provide additional amendments as determined by
soil tests.

4.3.2. Topsoil is to be loose, friable sandy loam that is clean and free
of toxic materials, noxious weeds, weed seeds, rocks,
grass or other foreign materials.

4.3.3. Topsoil shall have a ph of 6.5 to 8.0.
4.3.4. If on site topsoil does not meet these minimum standards

contractor is responsible for providing approved imported
topsoil or improving onsite topsoil per the approval of the
project manager.

4.4. If imported topsoil is used it must be from a local source and be
screened free of any debris or foreign matter. Topsoil must not
contain rocks, sticks, lumps, or toxic matter and has a pH of

6.5-8.0.
4.5. Smooth, compact, and fine grade topsoil in lawn areas to

smooth and uniform grade .5" below adjacent surfaces.
4.6. Amend all new plantings with 2 parts topsoil, 1 part compost.

5. LAWN AREAS
5.1. Sodded lawn to be tall turf-type fescue, or approved other.
5.2. Sodded lawn to be regionally/locally harvested, lay sod within

24 hours of harvesting.
5.3. Lay sod to form a solid mass with offset, tightly fitted joints on

even grades.
5.4. Any existing lawn that is damaged shall be replaced with

sodded lawn of the same type of existing lawn.
5.5. All lawn areas adjacent to planter beds, gravel areas, or

aggregate pathways shall have 4" black steel edging installed
per manufacturer recommendations. Other applications to be
approved by owner and landscape architect.

5.6. Lawn adjacent to buildings, structures shall be a minimum of
18" away from foundations. Lawn adjacent to fences or other
screening elements shall be a minimum of 9" away.

5.6.1. Install 38" chips or other approved gravel mulch type in mow strip
at a depth of 3" over commercial grade weed barrier fabric
installed per manufacturer recommendations.

5.7. Provide tree rings with a minimum 3' diameter around all trees
located in lawn, mulch type & installation/application to match all
other planter beds.

6. PLANTER BED MULCH
6.1. All planter beds to receive 3" depth of black & tan mini rock

mulch or approved equal, submit for approval prior to
placement. Install over commercial grade weed barrier fabric
per manufacturer recommendations.

7. PLANTS
7.1. All plant material shall be installed per industry standards.
7.2. All plant material shall meet or exceed the minimum federal

standards as regulated by ANSI z60.1, American Standard for
Nursery Stock. Plants not meeting these standards for quality,
or plants determined to be unhealthy by Owner's representative,
will be rejected.

7.3. All Ball and Burlap trees to be installed per Balled and
Burlapped planting detail. All shrubs to be installed per detail.

7.4. Trees and shrubs over 30" shall not be planted within clear
vision triangles.

7.5. Fertilize all trees and shrubs with 'Agriform' planting tablets or
approved equal. Apply per manufacturers recommendations.

8. IRRIGATION
8.1. Irrigation system shall be built to the following specifications:
8.2. Adhere to city codes when connecting to city water.
8.3. All irrigation material to be new with manufacturers' warranty

fully intact.
8.4. Install outdoor rated controller in specified location on plan, in a

lock box with 2 keys.  Coordinate with project manager and
general contractor on exact location.

8.4.1. Controller to have On/Off rain switch or rain shut off device that
does not alter program.

8.5. All remote control valves (including master control valve) to
have flow control device.

8.6. Irrigation system piping to be minimum class 200 PVC or
approved equal, sleeves to be double the size of pipes located
within, all wires to be contained in separate sleeves 1-1/2" dia
min.

8.7. All pipe above 3" caliper to be gasketed, with approved joint
restraints at all 45, TEE, ELL, 22, 11.

8.8. Use common trenching where possible..
8.9. All PVC located under hardscapes to be schedule 40 PVC with

same req's as above.
8.10. All wires to be Paige wire 7350 or 7351 direct bury wire at a

minimum of 12" below finished grade.
8.11. Connect mainline to point of connection in approximate location

shown on plan.
8.12. Contractor is responsible complying with all codes and paying

all permits necessary.
8.13. Sprinkler heads shall have matched precipitation within each

control circuit.  Velocities shall not exceed 5 feet per second.
8.14. All drip irrigation to be buried 2" below finished grade.
8.15. Water schedule to be provided at a min of 80%

evapotranspiration as determined by the local ET.
8.16. Install all irrigation per irrigation drawings. utilize material

specified or approved equal.
8.17. Contractor shall confirm the static water pressure at least five

days before construction begins and to contact the landscape
architect in writing if the pressure is below 80 psi.

8.18. If any discrepancies are found, then local codes shall prevail.
9. CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES

9.1. Estimated quantities are shown for general reference only.
Contractor shall be responsible for all quantity estimates.

9.2. All plant material and workmanship shall be guaranteed for a
period of one year beginning at the date of Acceptance by
Owner. Replace all dead or unhealthy plant material
immediately with same type and size at no cost to Owner.

9.3. Landscape contractor to turn in as built drawings at the end of
project. Substantial completion will not be granted until 2 copies
@ 1"=20' scale are turned in and approved by owner's
representative.

10. In the event of a discrepancy, notify the Landscape Architect
immediately.

LANDSCAPE NOTES:  

21
2"

TOP TWO STRUCTURAL
ROOTS: <3" BELOW TOP
OF ROOTBALL.

LOWEST STRUCTURAL
ROOT <5" BELOW TOP OF
ROOT BALL

61
2"

NOTES:
1. DO NOT DAMAGE OR CUT LEADER
2. DO NOT DISTURB ROOT OR DAMAGE ROOT BALL WHEN INSTALLING TREE OR TREE STAKES.
3. TREE STAKING SHALL BE AT THE DISCRETION OF CONTRACTOR. HOWEVER ANY TREES DISTURBED

FROM PLUMB DURING THE PLANT WARRANTEE PERIOD WILL BE REPAIRED OR REPLACED AT
CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

4. WATER PLANTS THOROUGHLY IMMEDIATELY AFTER INSTILLATION.
5. REMOVE ALL BURLAP, TWINE, ROPE, OR MATERIAL FROM THE TOP 13 OF THE ROOTBALL.
6. 5' DIAMETER PLANTER BED/MULCH RING AROUND THE TRUNK OF THE TREE. 3" OF MULCH MIN. DO

NOT PLACE MULCH WITHIN 2" OF TRUNK OF TREE.

GRAFT VISIBLE ABOVE SOIL
LINE

SOIL LINE OF THE TOP OF
THE ROOT BALL AFTER

REMOVING EXCESS SOIL.
2-3" OF MULCH

BACKFILL MIX SEE
NOTES AND

SPECIFICATIONS.

COMPACT SOIL UNDER
ROOTBALL TO 90% PROCTOR.

CUT AND FOLD WIRE
BASKET FROM TOP OF
ROOTBALL

SOIL SAUCER >3" HIGH
REMOVE AT END OF
PROJECT

BALL & BURLAP TREE PLANTING
3/4" = 1'-0"

1
3293-01

MULCH 2" MIN.
AWAY FROM TRUNK
OF PLANT.

LAWN OR PAVING

BALL AND BURLAP PLANT (IF
CONTAINER - GROWN PLANT
WITH ROOTS LOOSENED AND
PULLED OUT TO PREVENT
PLANT FROM BECOMING ROOT
BOUND)

SOIL SURFACE
ROUGHENED TO
BIND WITH NEW SOIL

FOLD BURLAP FROM TOP
OF ROOT BALL DOWN
INTO GROUND; SET TOP
OF BALL FLUSH WITH
FINISH GRADE

12" TO 18" FOR
LARGER SHRUB
ROOT BALLS,
MAKE DEPTH MIN.
4" DEEPER THAN
BALL)

3" DEEP MULCH MIN.

NOTE:
REMOVE ALL TAGS, TWINE OR
OTHER NON BIODEGRADABLE
MATERIALS ATTACHED TO PLANT OR
ROOT MASS.

BACKFILL SHALL BE 100% TOPSOIL.
WATER SETTLE ALL PLANTINGS TO
ENSURE PLANT ROOTBALL
MAINTAINS 12" HEIGHT ABOVE
EXISTING SOILS WHEN COMPLETE.

SHRUB PLANTING
1" = 1'-0"

2
329333-03

MOUND PLANTER 3.5" ABOVE TOP OF
CUB

TOP SOIL DEPTH AS
SPECIFIED

TOP SOIL DEPTH AS
SPECIFIED

PROVIE 1' MIN STEP SPACE
FOR ADJACENT PARKING
EACH SIDE, TYP

FINISHED GRADE .5"
BELOW TOP OF
CURB, TYP CURB, 6" OR

OTHER PER
CIVIL, TYP

1'-0"

FGFG

NOTE:
*CURB & ADJACENT PAVEMENT PER CIVIL OR HARDSCAPE PLANS
*TREE & SHRUB TO BE INSTALLED PER RESPECTIVE DETAILS
*PLANTS & MULCH PER PLAN

PLANTER ISLAND DETAIL
3/4" = 1'-0"

3
P-CO-01

JOB NO:
DATE:
DRAWN BY:
CHECKED BY:

#

DRAWING TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

JB
JB

07.21.2022
22-2383

D e s c r i p t i o nDATEMRK

REVISIONS

H
ID

D
EN

 M
IL

L 
SU

BD
IV

IS
IO

N

M
ID

D
LE

TO
N

, I
D

AH
O

1
A

B
C

D
E

F
G

H
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

ST
AC

K 
R

O
C

K 
G

R
O

U
P 

- C
IT

Y 
R

EV
IE

W
 S

ET

WILLET C HOWARD, PLA
OFFICE: (208) 345.0500 EMAIL:

WILL@STACKROCKGROUP.COM
www.STACKROCKGROUP.COM

THE GRAPHICS AND DESIGNS
O N  T H I S  S H E E T  A R E
DELIVERABLES THAT REMAIN
AT ALL TIMES PROPERTY OF
STACK ROCK GROUP, INC.

REPRODUCTION OR REUSE OF
THIS PRODUCT CONTAINED
H E R E  I N  I S  P R O H I B I T E D
W I T H O U T  T H E  W R I T T E N
CONSENT OF STACK ROCK
G R O U P ,  I N C .

©2022 STACK
ROCK GROUP, INC.

LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECTURE

& MASTER PLANNING

(208) 345-0500
404 S 8th St. #154
Boise, ID 83702

StackRockGroup.com

PRELIMINARY

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

07.21.22

L150

NOTES &
DETAILS

3:1 MAX INFILL AREA

3:1 MAX IN

CUT AREA

CONCRETE SIDEWALKS ADJ LANDING-12"
3/8" = 1'-0"

CONCRETE SIDEWALK
PER ACHD SUPPLEMENTAL
DRAWING SD-709

1.75% +/- 0.25%

12" FLAT LANDING,
2% MAX SLOPE

12" FLAT LANDING,
2% MAX SLOPE

NOTE:
REFERENCE ACHD SUPPLEMENTAL DRAWING SD-709 & CIVIL DRAWINGS

329320-05
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
Seals

AutoCAD SHX Text
**

AutoCAD SHX Text
**

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA-16733

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T



             
        

2 
 

 

     EXHIBIT “B” 

 

City Engineer & Planner Comments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 









             
        

3 
 

 

EXHIBIT “C” 

 

Agency Comments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Project:  The Hidden Mill Subdivision                                                                                                     Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 

 

DATE:    April 8, 2022 

TO:    Middleton City Planning and Zoning  

   Middleton City Council   

FROM:   Victor Islas, Deputy Chief  

SUBJECT:  Fire District Review  

PROJECT NAME:  The Hidden Mill Subdivision      

Fire District Summary Report:  
 

1. Overview This development can be serviced by the Middleton Rural Fire District.  This 
development shall comply with the 2018 International Fire Code (IFC) and any codes set forth by 
the City of Middleton, Idaho.   

 
2. Fire Response Time:  This development will be served by the Middleton Rural Fire District Station 

53, located at 302 E. Main St., Middleton, ID 83644.  Station 53 is 0.7 miles with a travel time of 
2 minutes under ideal driving conditions to the entrance of the Bridgewater Subdivision.   

 
3. Accessibility: Roadway Access, Traffic, Radio Coverage  

a. Access roads shall be provided and maintained following Appendix D and Section 503 of 
the IFC. Access shall include adequate roadway widths, signage, turnarounds, and turning 
radius for fire apparatus.  

b. Access road design shall be designed and constructed to allow for evacuation 
simultaneously with emergency response operations.  

c. All access roads in this development shall remain clear and unobstructed during 
construction of the development. Additional parking restrictions may be required as to 
always maintain access for emergency vehicles. Hydrants shall always remain 
unobstructed per city code.  

d. One- or two-family dwelling residential developments: Developments of one- or two-
family dwellings where the number of dwelling units exceeds 30 shall provide with at least 
two separate and approved fire apparatus access roads. With this purposed development 
utilizing the Bridgewater Subdivision main entrance the entrance will now be used by over 
30 homes. (Bridgewater = 21 single family lots, The Hidden Mill Subdivision = 20 Single 
family lots)  

i. Option – Provide secondary access.   
ii. Option – Provide secondary emergency access only.  

iii. Option - Where there are more than 30 dwelling units on a single public or private 
fire apparatus access road and all dwelling units are equipped throughout with an 
approved automatic sprinkler system in accordance with section 903.3.1.1, 903.1.2 
or 903.3.1.3, access from two directions shall not be required.  

 



 

Project:  The Hidden Mill Subdivision                                                                                                     Page 2 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 

e. The fire district requires that Autoturn models be submitted for review.  Autoturn models 
should be reflect the utilization of a 36’ long fire engine and a 50’ long ladder truck. 

f. Traffic calming devices will require approval by the Fire District 
g. An unobstructed vertical clearance of no less than 13 feet 6 inches shall be always 

maintained.   
h. Dead-end fire apparatus access roads (Common driveways & streets) in excess of 150 ft 

shall be provided with width and turnaround provisions in accordance with Table D103.4 
of IFC.  

i. Signs – Fire lane signs as specified in IFC secion D103.6 shall be posted on one side of the 
fire apparatus access roads more than 26 feet wide and less than 32 feet wide starting at the 
entrance of Bridgewater Subdivision. (See attached picture)  

j. The applicant shall work with City of Middleton and Middleton Rural Fire District to 
provide an address identification plan and signage which meets the requirements set forth 
by each agency. Addressing shall be placed in a position that is plainly legible and visible 
from the street or road fronting the property, as set forth in International Fire Code Section 
505.1 

k. All residential, commercial, and industrial buildings within the City shall have approved 
address numbers, building numbers, or approved building identification placed in a 
position that is plainly legible and visible from the street or road fronting the property. 
These numbers shall contrast with their background. When required by the fire code 
official, address numbers shall be provided in additional approved locations to facilitate 
emergency response.  

l. Address numbers shall have a minimum stroke width of one-half inch (0.5"), and of a color 
contrasting with the background. The required height of each address number shall be 
calculated by the distance of the addressed building from the road, as follows: 

 

m. Upon commencement of initial construction of a new structure, a clear visible freestanding 
sign or post hall be erected and maintained in place until the permanent address numerals  
are attached or otherwise displaced upon the premises at completion.  
 

4. Water Supply: Water supply requirements will be followed as described in Appendix B of the 
2018 International Fire Code unless agreed upon by the Fire District.  

a. Fire Flow: One-  and two-fami ly  dwellings not exceeding 3,600 square feet require a 
fire-flow of 1,000 gallons per minute for a duration of 1 hours to service the entire project. 
One-  and  two- fami ly  dwellings in excess of 3,600 square feet require a minimum fire 
flow as specified in Appendix B of the International Fire Code. 

 
 

Less than one hundred feet (100’)  6” 

one hundred feet to one hundred fifty feet (100 - 150') 8” 

one hundred fifty-one feet to two hundred feet (151 - 200') 10” 

two hundred one feet to two hundred fifty-one feet (201 - 251') 12” 



 

Project:  The Hidden Mill Subdivision                                                                                                     Page 3 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 

b. Automatic Fire Sprinklers as option due to access.  Will be in accordance with IFC and AHJ 
for review, approval and permitting.  

c. Water Supply: Acceptance of the water supply for fire protection will be by the Fire District 
and water quality by the City of Middleton for bacteria testing.  

d. Water Supply: Final Approval of the fire hydrant locations shall be by the Middleton Rural 
Fire District or their designee in accordance with International Fire Code Section (IFC) 
508.5.4 as follows:  

i. Fire hydrants shall have a Storz LDH connection in place of the 4 ½” outlet. The 
Storz connection may be integrated into the hydrant, or an approved adapter may 
be used on the 4 1/2" outlet.  

ii. Fire hydrants shall have the Storz outlet face the main street or parking lot drive 
aisle.  

iii. Fire hydrants shall be placed on corners when spacing permits.  
iv. Fire hydrants shall not have any vertical obstructions to outlets within 10’. 
v. Fire hydrants shall be placed 18” above finished grade to the center of the Storz 

outlet.  
vi. Fire hydrants shall be provided to meet the requirements of the City of Middleton 

Water Standards.  
vii. Show all proposed or existing hydrants for all new construction or additions to 

existing buildings within 1,000 feet of the project. 
 

5. Inspections: Final inspection by the Fire District of the above listed including hydrant flow must 
be completed before building permits are issued 
 

6. Additional Comments:  
a. Side Setback as per City Code.  Any modification to setback will require review and 

approval by the Fire District. 
b. Streetlights shall be turned on once residential building begins, Lighting is essential in 

assisting first responders with identifying entrances safely while responding to calls for 
service.  

 
 
 



             
        

4 
 

 

EXHIBIT “D” 

 

Surrounding Landowner Comments 



 

June 4, 2022 

 

Planning and Zoning Department 

City of Middleton 

P.O. Box 487 

Middleton, ID 83644 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

I am writing you concerning the public hearing notice sent via mail regarding Hidden Mill 

Preliminary Plat. It is my understanding that there is a public hearing to be held in regard to a 

proposed development of twenty residential lots and four common lots in the Hidden Mill 

Subdivision. I wish to express my comments and concerns prior to the public hearing concerning 

this matter. 

 

I own the lot next to the designated area of this proposed development. I would support this 

development if the following terms were considered and met. First, I would ask the developer if 

we could tap into the existing utilities for our use, particularly the water and sewer utilities. 

Second, I would respectfully request that the developer build a privacy fence between the entire 

length of my lot and the proposed development at his or her sole expense on or before October 

30, 2022. Third, should the developer want to extend the existing paved trail behind his or her 

development, that would be acceptable at the expense of the developer, even if it is built on or 

near my property. Finally, there is a private drive to my lot, and I would request that access to the 

new development does not utilize the private road to my building lot. 

 

It has been a pleasure to have the opportunity to discuss this matter with your department. I am 

appreciative of the time and effort that is being put into making this project worthwhile, both for 

the developer as well as the current residents and landowners in the area. Also attached is an 

image that depicts the location of my lot (circled in yellow) in relation to the proposed 

development site. Please let me know if you have any additional questions regarding my 

comments, requests, or property. 

 

Thank you, 

 

Brent Schwab 

505-695-3792 

brentschwab@gmail.com 

 

 








	Riff SUP staff report.pdf
	Brien Riff Special Use Permit Application
	(0 E. 2nd Street – Tax Parcel No. R186120)
	Snapshot Summary
	A. Planning & Zoning Commission Hearing Date: August 8, 2022
	B. Project Description & Application Request: Application by Brien Riff for special use permit to build residential duplex at 0 E. 2nd Street (Tax Parcel No. R186120).
	C. Current Zoning & Property Condition:  The property is within city limits and zoned Multi-Family (M-F).  The parcel is bordered on the north by property zoned R-4. It is surrounded on the other three sides with M-F zoning.
	D. City Services:  City water and sewer are accessible to the project. Both are adjacent to the site.
	There may be an issue regarding whether the 2” water line in 2nd Street can adequately handle a 7th connection that would be required for this new duplex.  Therefore, Staff recommends that as a condition of approval Owner shall ensure that the tap int...
	E. Special Use Permit: - A Duplex (or “single family dwelling, attached”) is an allowed use in the M-F zone with a special use permit.
	Under MCC 1-15-7(C), the Commission may also mandate conditions of approval to mitigate any adverse impacts proposed by the special use.
	Staff Findings:
	As to finding No. 2, Planning Staff finds that the duplex is a use designated under M-F in the “Use Table” (MCC 5-4-1, Table 1), so there is no issue there.
	As to finding No. 3, Planning Staff finds that city services, such as sewer and water, can be adequately extended to the site as already shown above.
	As to finding 4, Planning Staff finds that the duplex is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan.  The duplex is a “residential use, and the Comprehensive Plan, Future Land Use Map shows “mixed use”, which includes all residential use types.
	Finding No 1, may take a little more thought.  The Commission must determine if the duplex proposed is “not unreasonable or incompatible” with the surrounding neighborhood. In other words, will it fit in or be discordant.
	A rendering of the proposed duplex is below.
	This is a generic rendering of the duplex product. The previous rendering, however, is a more accurate representation of what is actually proposed for the site.
	Below are pictures of the lots and buildings surrounding this proposed duplex lot.
	F. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  None
	G. Comments from Agencies:  None
	H. Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff:   None.
	I. Applicant Information:  Applicant is Brien Riff, 2976 E. State Street #120, Box 23, Eagle Idaho 83616. 208.573.5779 / Riffbrien@gmail.com
	J. Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:    Dates:
	Newspaper Notification     7/24/2022
	Radius notification mailed to
	Adjacent landowners within 500’    7/21/2022
	Circulation to Agencies     7/21/2022
	Sign Posting property     7/22/2022
	Neighborhood Meeting     8/1/2022
	K. Pertinent Codes and Standards:
	Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, Middleton City Code 1-3, 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-and Idaho Code Title 67, Chapter 65.
	L. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:
	Per State law and the Middleton City Code, any final order must be based upon findings of facts and conclusions of law.
	As to Findings of Facts, Planning Staff has set forth findings of facts above in parentheses, except Staff did not set forth any opinion or statement on whether the proposed duplex is “compatible with” and “reasonable for” the surrounding neighborhood.
	As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that the Planning & Zoning Commission has the authority to hear the application and to approve or deny the special use permit with or without conditions.  Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all publi...
	Order: If the Commission is inclined to approve the Special Use Permit Application, Staff recommends the following conditions of approval
	1. Applicant must comply with all dimensional standards and setbacks in the Middleton City Code for the M-F zone.
	2. Owner shall ensure that the connection into the existing water line is water-tight by making any repairs to the 2” line for defects that are exposed during excavation.
	3. Owner acknowledges that water flow quantity may be compromised to some degree during peak use hours.
	4. Until water line is brought up to current standards, Owner will be limited to a single ¾” residential water service to serve only the domestic needs of the duplex unit.
	5. Owner cannot use City water for landscape irrigation or fire suppression.
	Prepared by Roberta Stewart         Dated: 8/4/2022 Planning & Zoning Director


	Hidden Mill P&Z 8.8.22 Staff Report w Exhibits.pdf
	Hidden Mill Exhibits PZ.pdf
	2022.07.21 Hidden Mill Sub Pre Plat Landscape Plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	22-2383 100 AR Landscape Plan-L100
	22-2383 100 AR Landscape Plan-L150







